¥ visi .
Meeting Minutes @ Scotland | Alba

(2020-01)

Minutes of Meeting of the VisitScotland Board
held on 11 June 2020 by video conference

Present: John Thurso (Chairman)
Anne Anderson
Caroline Roxburgh
Stephen Hagan
Rebecca Brooks
Keith Nicholson
Steven Walker
Cathy Craig

In attendance: Malcolm Roughead (Chief Executive)
Vicki Miller (Director of Marketing, Digital and Global Brand)
Riddell Graham (Director of Industry and Destination Development)
Ken Neilson (Director of Corporate Services)
Paul Bush (Director of Events)

Minutes: Gayle Biggart

INTRODUCTIONS

1. The Chairman welcomed Board members to the meeting and thanked them for joining the
meeting by video conference. No apologies were noted. It was advised that items would
be taken in a slightly different order to the circulated agenda as Riddell Graham was
chairing the STERG meeting at 11am. It was noted that the matters arising would be
covered during the course of today’s meeting.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 30 April 2020

2. The minutes of the Board meeting held on 30 April 2020 were approved as a true and
accurate record of the meeting.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

3. Keith Nicholson advised of a potential conflict in relation to the Good to Go initiative. Keith
noted that he is a director of a business which owns self-catering properties in Edinburgh
and Caithness which was likely to seek to participate in the initiative.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S SUMMARY AND REPORT (INCLUDING GENERAL COVID-19 UPDATE)

4, The Chairman invited the Chief Executive to provide the Chief Executive’s summary and a
general update on the COVID-19 response. The Chief Executive noted that much of the

l|Page



¥ visi .
Meeting Minutes @ Scotland | Alba

(2020-01)

information contained in the Board papers had now been superseded as the situation
continued to be fluid. The announcement from Scottish Government on Wednesday 10
June giving tourism businesses a date to work towards for reopening was welcomed.

5. An overview of the results of a VisitScotland staff survey (conducted in May during the
lockdown) was provided to the Board and it was advised that the full results would be
brought to the Board in July. It was noted that the response from staff had been very
positive and although there were some pockets of concern, generally amongst staff who
live alone or have care or home-schooling responsibilities, colleagues and line managers
had been checking in on staff virtually and offering support. The Chief Executive has also
held drop in forums with staff across the organisation to answers any concerns and provide
an update on the work which VisitScotland has been doing. It was noted that the health and
wellbeing of VisitScotland staff was the main priority and there would not be a push to open
iCentres or offices until there was more certainty.

ACTION: Bring full staff survey results to the Board in July.

6. It was noted that the only current recruitment processes in place were for 2023 Cycling
World Championships Limited and that the 2020 Pay Award had been implemented for all
staff (excluding variable iCentre staff) in the May payroll. It was advised that a minimum pay
rate of £10 per hour is now in place, and 110 variable iCentre staff have received an uplift to
the new rate.

7. The Chief Executive advised that he was speaking regularly to the Cabinet Secretaries,
providing input into the various applicable funding packages and highlighting that industry
needed a date to work towards for reopening to allow them to prepare. It was noted that
yesterday’s announcement was a great step forward. It was highlighted that Tourism and
Hospitality Guidelines were expected to be announced by Scottish Government on 18 June.

8. It was noted the value of the tourism industry in 2019 had broken all records, despite Brexit.
The development of the staycation market was highlighted, and it was noted that it was
expected that this market would continue to play an important role. It was advised that
there were indications that bookings from August onwards were growing but that work
needed to be done to support industry to be in a position to open and ensure there is
enough bookable product available, as well as consideration being given to how visitors get
here and how they move around. It was stated that a more extensive communications plan
is being brought together by the STERG group, with input from its various representatives.
The work which would need to be done to unpick the “stay at home, stay safe” message was
also noted, but that the challenge was welcomed.

9. Feedback received from industry by Board members in relation to VisitScotland’s
communications in relation to COVID-19 was relayed to Management. There was a
discussion around the feedback which had been received and it was noted that
consideration needs to be given to balancing the work to be done with industry to
encourage them to open up safely against building trust and confidence in local supply

2|Page



¥ visi .
Meeting Minutes @ Scotland | Alba

(2020-01)

chains, communities and consumers. The Board recommended that VisitScotland read all
relevant guidance and legislation and issue communications based on what is right,
ensuring that reasons for taken certain actions is documented and justified. It was noted
that it would not be possible to keep everyone happy. The Chief Executive thanked the
Board for its input, noting that the comments would be taken on board. It was
acknowledged that communications are key during this period; that VisitScotland has a
communications plan based around instilling confidence in the industry, communities and
consumers; and that it is currently working with various destination management
organisations whose support is required in order to implement the plan. It was also noted
that over 3,500 attendees had signed-up to webinars held by VisitScotland Management
over the last month or so. It was noted that the messaging in the webinars had been clear,
direct and honest and that the feedback received had been positive.

INDUSTRY AND DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT

10. It was noted that the focus of the organisation had been on supporting industry over the
last couple of months and that the Industry and Destination Development Directorate had
been on the front line of this. It was noted that STERG continue to meet on a weekly basis
and that it is proposed that STERG feeds into the Tourism Recovery Taskforce announced
by the Cabinet Secretary on 10 June. It was advised that there had been 99 applications to
VisitScotland’s Coronavirus (COVID19) support scheme for tourism destination and sector
organisations, with 82 of those being successful. It was highlighted that the tourism
destination and sector organisations supported represent over 10,000 tourism businesses
across Scotland.

11. The Director of Industry and Destination Development provided an overview of the ‘Good
to Go’ initiative which had been set out in the Board papers. It was noted that the initiative
was being led by VisitBritain/Visit England, with support from VisitScotland, Visit Wales and
Tourism Northern Ireland. It was advised that sector guidelines had been produced by
relevant bodies and the initiative would allow tourism businesses to access an online
platform and self-certify that they had read and understood the guidelines relevant to their
sector. It was stated that VisitScotland would not be involved in spot checks covering the
health and safety element of the guidelines being implemented but that part of its role
could be to make phone calls to businesses to check businesses are aware of and have
considered following the guidelines.

12. There followed a discussion by the Board in which the Board highlighted that it was
essential to be clear of VisitScotland’s role in the initiative from the outset and to ensure
that the organisation does not find itself being held to account for public safety/health as a
result of the scheme. Theimportance of having a pan UK scheme was emphasised alongside
the diverging approaches of the devolved governments. It was highlighted that Scottish
businesses should be directed to Scottish Government and Public Health Scotland advice.
The messaging to the consumer was also discussed and it was advised that this should be
clear to help build consumer confidence and to set out the role played by VisitScotland. The
Director of Industry and Destination Development commented on the points raised by

3| Page



¥ visi .
Meeting Minutes @ Scotland | Alba

(2020-01)

Board members and confirmed that it was not the intention for VisitScotland to regulate
health and safety matters as a result of this initiative. It was noted that businesses would be
asked to confirm where they are based and would then be directed to the relevant guidance.
It was confirmed that discussions on the consumer messaging are ongoing but that the
terms and conditions would make it clear where responsibilities lay.

The Board approved the ‘Good to Go’ initiative in principle subject to the details in paragraph
12 being finalised. The importance of VisitScotland not being seen as a regulator was
reiterated and it was noted that the aspiration was for this to be a nationwide initiative, but
with Scottish Government and Public Health Scotland guidance and advice being applicable
for Scottish businesses.

ACTION: Management to ensure the points raised by the Board are taken forward and actioned
with counterparts at VisitBritain/Visit England, Visit Wales and Tourism Northern Ireland.

CORPORATE SERVICES - BUSINESS CONTINUITY UPDATE

13. The Director of Corporate Services confirmed that the organisation is operational. It was
noted that the Business Continuity Group is now meeting to discuss when and how iCentres
and local offices could be reopened. It was noted that work is also underway to assess the
need for larger local offices and it was advised that the agile working policy is being updated
to reflect the lessons which have been learned during this period of working from home.
The Chairman thanked Management for the comprehensive paper and commented on the
good job being done in this area.

EVENTS

14. The Director of Events provided an update on the work undertaken by the Events
Directorate over the last couple of months. It was noted that the return of events was in
phase 4 of the Scottish Government’s plan but that the events industry had taken a
pragmatic approach to this and wished to get the set up of events right going forward rather
than rushing back. The importance of learning from the successes and challenges which
other countries, who are further into the recovery stages, have faced was highlighted and it
was noted that EventScotland would be looking to do this. It was noted that unlike the
tourism industry there is no events industry body. The Events Directorate is now working
with the industry to create a national events advisory group (with representation across
event organisers of different sizes and geographic locations) to provide strategic advice on
issues facing the industry as well as to be a communication channel out to the wider
industry. It was also stated that EventScotland has been working with the Scottish
Government to provide clear advice to the events sector as to how events should and could
be delivered when the restrictions are lifted. It was indicated that golf events may return in
a “behind closed doors” format from August meaning the Scottish and British Ladies Opens
may be able to take place.

15. An update on the 2023 Cycling World Championships was also provided to the Board and
the Director of Events thanked Caroline Roxburgh for her assistance.

4| Page



Y ovVisit ™
Meeting Minutes & Scotland | Alba

(2020-01)

MARKETING AND DIGITAL

16. The Director of Marketing and Digital advised that the Directorate was continuing work to

kee |

5|Page



